The School Board of Broward County, Florida

BULLETIN NO.: H-110

PAGE: 1 OF 9

DATE: JULY 1, 2008

SUBJECT: PROCEDURES FOR EVALUATING INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	Introduction	2
II.	Procedures	2
	A. Required Training	2
	B. Orientation	2
	C. Observation/Data Collection	2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3
	D. Feedback Conferences	2
	E. Staff Development	2
	F. Timeline	2
	G. Ratings	3
	H. Categories	3
	I. Performance Development Plan	3
III	. Responsibilities of All Applicable Departments	4
	A. Division of Human Resources	4
	B. Office of Professional Standards	4
	C. Human Resource Development Department	4
	D. School Principal	4
IV	. Reporting Requirements	4
	A. Form Completion	4
V.	Distribution	5
VI	. Exhibits	5
	A. Instructional	6
	B. Media	7
	C. Student Services	8
I.	Index	9

Supersedes:	Issued By:
N/A New Business Practice Bulletin	Evaluation Coordinators

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

BULLETIN NO.: H-110

PAGE: 2 OF 9

DATE: JULY 1, 2008

SUBJECT: PROCEDURES FOR EVALUATING INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL

I. INTRODUCTION:

The purpose of this bulletin is to identify the necessary steps and procedures required by the Collective Bargaining Agreement of the Broward Teachers Union for evaluating Instructional employees.

II. PROCEDURES

A. REQUIRED TRAINING

All administrators who evaluate teachers are required to take the FPMS training and update, NESS training, and IPAS training.

B. ORIENTATION

All instructional personnel must be oriented to the IPAS instrument and process by September 15th, or upon hire.

C. OBSERVATION/DATA COLLECTION

Formal observations are 30 minutes in length and may be conducted by the Principal or designee. Annual Contract teachers are required to have at least one 30 minute observation during the first semester. For first year Annual Contract teachers, the assessor will notify the employee in advance of the week in which the observation is to take place. Teachers with a Professional Services Contract (PSC) or a Continuing Contract (CC) must be observed during their final year of recertification.

D. FEEDBACK CONFERENCES

Conferences are used to communicate the results of data collection activities and the completion of the assessment form. Feedback includes recommendations for individual professional development and performance improvement. Post observation conferences should take place within 10 working days of the observation.

E. STAFF DEVELOPMENT

Teachers, coaches, and administrators are encouraged to attend staff development throughout the cycle to update and hone skills. Staying abreast of innovative teaching techniques, data collection and interpretation, and conferencing skills, among others, is imperative to improving teacher performance

F. <u>TIMELINE</u>

- 1. All instructional personnel must be oriented to the IPAS instrument and process by September 15th, or upon hire.
- AC teachers must be observed and given feedback within the first semester, and all PSC and CC teachers must be observed and given feedback in during their recertification year.
- 3. Any employee who has performance concerns should be notified as soon as the concerns are identified.
- 4. The final evaluation must be completed before the final week of school.

Supersedes:	Issued By:
N/A New Business Practice Bulletin	Evaluation Coordinators

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

BULLETIN NO.: H-110

PAGE: 3 OF 9
DATE: JULY 1, 2008

SUBJECT: PROCEDURES FOR EVALUATING INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL

G. RATINGS

- 1. A rating of S, or Satisfactory, indicates the employee is meeting the job standard. To receive an Overall Satisfactory, all categories must be rated as Satisfactory.
- 2. A rating of N, or Needs Improvement, indicates the employee does not meet the job standard. This rating can only be used for Annual Contract teachers and a Performance Development Plan (PDP) must be implemented. To receive an Overall Needs Improvement, one or more category must be rated as Needs Improvement, with no ratings of Unsatisfactory.
- 3. A rating of U, or Unsatisfactory, indicates the employee does not meet the job standard. To receive an Overall Unsatisfactory, a Performance Development Plan (PDP) must be implemented and one or more categories must be rated as Unsatisfactory.

H. CATEGORIES

- 1. Instructional Planning
- 2. Lesson Management
- 3. Lesson Presentation
- 4. Student Performance Evaluation
- 5. Communication
- 6. Classroom Management
- 7. Behavior Management
- 8. Records Management
- 9. Subject Matter Knowledge
- 10. Other Professional Competencies

I. PERFORMANCE DEVELOPMENT PLAN (PDP)

- 1. When a rating of Needs Improvement or Unsatisfactory is used, a Performance Development Plan is developed by the principal in collaboration with the employee.
- 2. Use and implementation of this plan requires
 - a. Identification of deficiencies
 - b. Definition of strategies for improvement
 - c. Definition of an assistance timeline
 - d. Definition of expected outcomes
 - e. Definition of possible consequences for failure to remediate
 - f. Multiple formal observations and conferences
 - g. Completion of assistance activities
 - h. Documentation
- 3. These plans should be implemented first semester whenever possible

III. RESPONSIBILITIES OF ALL APPLICABLE DEPARTMENTS

A. DIVISION OF HUMAN RESOURCES

Supersedes:	Issued By:
N/A New Business Practice Bulletin	Evaluation Coordinators

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

BULLETIN NO.: H-110

PAGE: 4 OF 9

DATE: JULY 1, 2008

SUBJECT: PROCEDURES FOR EVALUATING INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL

The Division of Human Resources develops and distributes an annual schedule of assessment activities. In addition, it receives completed forms, ensures the implementation of the system, and maintains assessment records in personnel files. The Division of Human Resources coordinates the Instructional Personnel Assessment Committee with the Broward Teachers Union. The Division periodically collaborates with the Department of Program Evaluation to evaluate the IPAS. A.

B. OFFICE OF PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS

This office makes direct interventions with principals and teachers when performance is determined to be unsatisfactory. In addition, it coordinates the New Educator Support System (NESS).

C. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

This department coordinates training programs for assessors and teachers.

D. <u>SCHOOL PRINCIPAL</u>

The principal implements IPAS activities at the school level. He or she is responsible for ensuring that each instructional employee is oriented and that the required assessment is completed. He or she may delegate some data collection activities to another administrator in the school.

IV. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

A. FORM COMPLETION

- 1. The three IPAS evaluation forms are to be used for all instructional, media, and student services personnel.
- 2. Psychologists and other employees whose assignments essentially involve extensive individual casework will be assessed by observation and review of assigned casework at least once annually. Such assessment(s) will be conducted by the Director or Area Coordinators of Psychological Services for psychologists and the similar respective program director for other employees.
- 3. At least one assessment of each employee will be conducted by the principal, director, or his/her designee.
- 4. The 'Type of Assessment' (located at the top of the form) should be should be checked as either:
 - a. Development All teachers excepting those listed below in Documentation.
 - b. Documentation All Annual Contract (AC) teachers, all teachers in their fifth year of certificate renewal, and all teachers placed into documentation for performance deficiencies.
- 5. The Contract Status (located at the top of the form) should be completed as AC (Annual Contract), PSC (Professional Services Contract), or CC (Continuing Contract).
- 6. The 'Collection Dates' (located at the top of the form) should be completed as a range, i.e. 9/15/03-5/15/04.

Supersedes:	Issued By:
N/A New Business Practice Bulletin	Evaluation Coordinators

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

BULLETIN NO.: H-110

PAGE: 5 OF 9
DATE: JULY 1, 2008

SUBJECT: PROCEDURES FOR EVALUATING INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL

- 7. Three groups of teachers must be observed prior to receiving an evaluation:
 - a. Annual Contract teachers
 - b. Teachers in their fifth year of certificate renewal
 - c. Teachers placed into documentation for performance deficiencies.
- 8. The rules for using the ratings are as follows:
 - a. An *overall* rating on the final evaluation of Needs Improvement (N) or Unsatisfactory (U) may only be given when a PDP has been developed.
 - b. A Needs Improvement may only be used for Annual Contract teachers.
 - c. One or more indicators rated as Needs Improvement results in an *overall* Needs Improvement.
- 9. One or more indicators rated as Unsatisfactory results in an overall Unsatisfactory.
- 10. The Evaluation Coordinators must be notified prior to the writing of a PDP.
- 11. The form is completed by the assessor and signed by the employee. The employee's signature indicates only that he/she has read the form and does not necessarily indicate agreement with its content.
- 12. The final assessment form and any attachments thereto become the complete documentary record of the employee's performance during the particular performance period.
- 13. The Substitute Teacher Evaluation is optional and is used at the discretion of the Principal. When completed, it is submitted to Supervisor, Personnel Records. An Unsatisfactory performance will result in being placed on the location's "Do Not Use" list and will count as a negative evaluation for the substitute. The Substitute Teacher Clearance Form states: *My name may be removed from the approved substitute teacher list when three or more schools have negatively evaluated my performance*.

V. DISTRIBUTION

All evaluation instruments and manuals must be made readily available to all employee and supervisors. These documents will be housed on the website:

http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/evaluationcoordinators/

VI. EXHIBITS

- A. Instructional
- B. Media
- C. Student Services

Supersedes:	Issued By:
N/A New Business Practice Bulletin	Evaluation Coordinators

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

BULLETIN NO.: H-110

PAGE: 6 OF 9

DATE: JULY 1, 2008

SUBJECT: PROCEDURES FOR EVALUATING INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL

Broward County Pub	lia Cabaa	l Dietri e	t Florido	à							
,	71C 3C10C	טו טואווע	t, Flolida	T		Type of Assess		nent Sv	S - Satisfacto	orv	
Personnel #:			olYear ContractStatus:	(CheckOne)		Rating	N - Needs Improvement				
School:				comi act status.	De vel op men t:		Scale		-		
Data Collection Dates: Assessor:						Do cumentatio r			U - Un satisfa	T	
Performance Are					nal Personnel					Rating	
Instructional Planning	Develops lesson plans and selects instruction alm aterials and activities which reflect the district 's curriculum soop eand sequence and iden tified learners' needs.			es um	Develops lesson plans v prerequisite knowledge, readiness of students. Specifies learner objecti	Relates in str content, ma and goals to					
i iaiiiiig	Identifies	and seque	nces content.		relates these to the instractivity.	ructional	Specifies the steps, sequence, and pacing of student activities appropriate to their needs and the content area.				
Lesson Management	Orients students to classwork, specifies purposes of activities and relationship to the objectives.			d	Prepares the dassroom, equipment for the prese lesson.	materials, and entation of the	Transitions to an other plans and le		activity or to pic nce with lesson eds.		
Lesson	available	nal tech ni materials a	iques in duding and technology in a of the spec	1	Emphasizes what is importenember.	ortantto	require stud responding	lents to ref			
Presentation	Circulates	saboutth	eroom as stud	lents	Uses different types of q desired learner response	S.	Givesclear, and checks f	brief, and e: orunderstan	xplic it directions ding.		
		as needed	and assists I.		Recognizes students' re questions and provides	sponses to feed back.	Reviews studend and specific	dent work ar written or v	nd provides timely erbal feedback.		
	asses sme	Selects or develops a variety of assessments and formats related to specific learning objectives.			Uses test data to diagno student strengths and v	ose individual weaknesses.	Grades tests objectively				
Student	Creates a positive test-taking atmospher				mo mo ro di di darro da m		Instructs stu techniques.				
Performance	and Distri	ict.			chievement standards and		-				
Evaluation	Provides evidence of improvement of student ach evement gains through norm - referenced and criterion- referenced stand arized test results where available and at least one of the other following assessment strategies selected by the teacher: student performance demonstrations, teacher observations and portfolios of student work. Where the above referenced standardized student tests are not available, the principal will also select one of the other assessment strategies listed above. The parties recognize that standardized test scores can be influenced by a number of factors outside the school setting such as student mobility rates, the number of special need students, parental support, etc.										
	Speaks in a clear, audible, well mo dulated v oice.				Uses correct grammar in oral communications.	ammar in written and ideas and ideas and			ts connected or associated nd thoughts.		
Communication	Expresses in terest and excitement through verbal and non verbal behavior.				Demon strates basic med writing: spelling, capital punctuation.		Communicates learner status and progress to panents in order to maintain a positive, co laborative relationship. Additionally communicates learner status and progress to the student and other professionals.				
Classroom	Creates and maintains an organized and pleasant working environment in the classroom.			iand ne	En courages students to contribute to class activ	participate and ities.	Pro motes positive student self- concepts.				
Management	Identifies ind ivid ual social, emotional and/or physical needs that might affect school success.			al ect	Establishes an environn positive peer interaction	n en t conductive to 1.	Uses appropriate procedures to refer individual students for further assessment or intervention by other professionals.				
Behavior	Establishes and implements specific behavioral and procedural expectations, rules, and consequences.			c ion s,	Demon strates an awaren stu dents are doin g.		Reinforces positive student behavior.				
Management					Stops inappropriate beh spreads or becomes mo						
Records Management	Maintains a up-to-date	anorganiz elessonpl	zed, accurate, a an and grade b	nd o ok.	Maintains accurate atten	dance records.	Maintains a system for recording individual student's knowledge and skills progress in a subject area.				
Subject Matter Knowledge Presents accurate information.					gnizes and promotes the relationship esubject with the school's content for the specific subject.						
Other Complies with Florida Statutes, State Board of Education Rules, School Board of Broward County Pol cies, Professional other applicable regulations.									cies, and		
Overall Performance Rating S - Satisfactory N - Needs Improvement (Annual contract teachers only) U - Unsatisfactory											
Comments by the as	sessor:										
					Assessor				Date		
Comments by the em	nployee:										

Supersedes:	Issued By:
N/A New Business Practice Bulletin	Evaluation Coordinators

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

BULLETIN NO.: H-110

PAGE: 7 OF 9

DATE: JULY 1, 2008

SUBJECT: PROCEDURES FOR EVALUATING INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL

Broward County Pub	lic Schoo	ol District, Fl	orida 🐔	Instru	ctional Perso	nnel Ass	sessme	nt System		
Emp lo yee:			Sch	nool Year:	Type of Assess			S - Satisfacto	ory	
			Contract Status:	Development:		Rating	N - Need s Im	p ro veme nt		
Data Collection Dates: Assessor:				Do cumentatio n		Scale U - Un satisfac		ic to ry		
Performance Are School Media Specialist Performance Indicators										
Planning	Advisory and long	yutilizes the Li Committee to d	brary Media	Establishes written poli	Establishes written policies and procedures to achieve the goals of the media program.			Provides optimal utilization of school and district media resources and facilities on a fair and equitable basis to students and staff.		
	Pro motes awareness	teacher and stoof media resou	udent ırces.	media skills instruct io n	Integrates a sequential program of library media skills instruction into the curriculum in cooperation with teachers.			Provides inservice training to promote effective use of resources and services.		
Lesson Management	and speci	tudents to med fiespurposes onshiptoobje	of activities	Prepares media center requipment in preparation presentation or activity	n for the	Provides tra or topic to a lesson plan	anotherin:	om oneactivity accordancewith erneeds.		
Lesson	technique which sup	nd uses instruc es and available oport learning o nowledge or sk	tech nology of the specific	Emphasizes what is impremember.	ortantto	Asks questi require stud responding	dents to ref	are clear and lect before		
Presentation	Circulate engage in	sabouttheroo	om as students assists	Uses different types of or desired participants' res	po nses.	Giv es clear, directions a forun dersta	and checks	explicit		
	students	as needed.		Recognizes students' re questions and provides	feed back.	timelyand s	specific writ	and provides ten or verbal		
Student Evaluation Provides evidence of use of strategies and direct services which focus on improving student performance and helping students become self-directed learners. This will include, but not be limited to: providing instruction to foster competence in a equiring and using information and ideas and in evaluating information resources; stimulating interest in reading and a ppreciation of literature through group instruction and individual guidance; providing intellectual and								tin		
0	ph si cal access to materials in multiple Speaks in a clear, audible, well modulated v ofce. Expresses interest and excitement through verbal and nonverbal behavior.			Uses correct grammar i oral communications.		Present's connected or associated ideas and thoughts.				
Communication					Demonstrates basic mechanics of writing: spelling, capitalization, and punctuation.			Develops rapport with parents to foster a positive, collaborative relationship. Additionally, develops rapport with students, staff, and the community to promote the library		
	Creates and maintains an organized and pleasant working environment.			En courages students to contribute to media centrativities.	participate and er learning	Provide es pa concepts.				
Media Center Management		ind iv id ual socia ysical needs that ccess.		Establishes an environ positive peer interaction		Participates ervision & e	in the sele valuation o	ction, training, su of library personne	p- I.	
Behavior Management	Establishes and implements specific behavioral and procedural expectations, rules, and consequences.			Demon strates an awaren stu dents are doing. Stops inappropriate bel	individual s a behavior before it			opriate procedures to refer students for further at or intervention byother		
	1 41 40 , 41 14			spreads or becomes mo	Reinforces positive student behavior.					
Records Management	Maintains Imedia ce	sanorganized anteractivities.	andup-to-date	Maintains accurate user statistics of media center use. Shows evidence of proper recorkeeping practices.			operrecord			
	Plans for changing needs and improvements in program, collection, and facilities with administration and faculty. Shows evidence of professional growth.			with students, faculty, m	Maintains of fective working relationships with students, faculty, media staff, district staff, and community members.		Develops a collection that supports needs of the curriculum and recognizes individual levels of abilityand interests.			
Subject Matter Knowledge				and recorded data to pla	An az yzes school go als and objectives and recorded data to plan media pro gram, resources, and services.			Prepares and sub mits accurate and punctual reports.		
•	Develops the budget for equipment, materials, and supplies according to school, state and federal regulations.				students & teachers to cate & utilize			Follows standard operating procedures for selecting, organizing, and circulating materials & equipment.		
Other Complies with Florida Statutes, State Board of Education Rules, School Board of Broward County Policie Professional other applicable regulations.									cies, and	
Ove rall Perform an	ce Ratin	g S- S	atisfactory		N - Needs Improvement (Annual contract teachers					
Comments by the as	ses sor:			only)						
				Assessor				Date		
Comments by the em	ployee:									

Supersedes:	Issued By:
N/A New Business Practice Bulletin	Evaluation Coordinators

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

BULLETIN NO.: H-110

PAGE: 8 OF 9

DATE: JULY 1, 2008

SUBJECT: PROCEDURES FOR EVALUATING INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL

Broward County Pub	lic Schoo	ol District, Florida	a 🍒	Inst	uctional Per	sonnel As	sessme	nt System	
Employee: School Year: Type of Assessment: (CheckOne) S - Satisfacto								ory	
School: Personnel #:			Contract Status: Development:		nt:	Rating Scale	N - Needs In	np ro vement	
Data Collection Dates	:	Assess	or:		Do cumenta	tion	ocare	U - Un satisf	actory
Performance Are		Student/S	upport	Services Po			nce In	dicators	Rating
Planning	Develops, plans, and selects materials and activities which reflect the identified participant's needs.			Develops plans prerequisite kno and readiness o	activiti to iden	Relates content, materials, activities, format, and goals to identified participant			
	I den ti fi	esand sequence	s content	Specifies partici and relates these	•	pacing o	Specifies the steps, sequence, ar pacing of participant activities appropriate to their needs.		
Organization	specifie	participants to t espurposes of ta	sks, and	Prepares material in preparation for activity		ent Transitio	ns from c	on e activity or	
Presentation of		and uses technic learning.	ues whic	h Emphasizes what remember.	is important to	and req		hich are clear cipantsto ponding.	
Content	particip	tes about the roo ants engage in t participants as n	asks and	Uses different typ obtain desired pa Recognizes partic questions and pr	rticpants' respo cipants' respon	onsedirections understand ses Keviewspa	rticipants'v melyand sp		
Evaluation of Student and	Selects or develops a variety of assessments and formats related t			Uses test data and ments to diagnos strengths and we	e participan t	ob jective	Scores tests accurately and objectively.		
Program	Creates a positive assessment atmosphere.			Monitors particip assessment.	ants during		Instructs participants in assessment techniques.		
	Speaks in a clear, audible, well modulated voice.			Uses correct grar oral communicati	ideas an	dPresents connected or associate ideas and thoughts.			
Communication		es interest and e verbal and non r.		Demonstrates bas writing: spelling, punctuation.	of and progre foster a po and relation shi communic	communicates pertinent information and progress to appropriate			
Student Performance	Provides evidence of use of strategies and direct services which focus clearly on improving student achievement as described in the Standards of Service policy. These may include classroom interventions, modeling alternative teaching strategies, individualized training and technical assistance for teachers in order to increase their capacity to enhance the learning environment, improving family partnerships as described in						ıt.		
	Creates and plea	and maintains a asant working en	n organiz vironmen	e⊄Encouragesparti ⊶andcontribute to	cipant to engaç activities.	ge in Promote	s positive	self- concepts	š.
Management of Special Setting	Identifies individual's social, emotional and/or physical needs that might affect success.			Establishes an er conducive to pos interaction.	refer ind further a	Uses appropriate procedures to refer individual participants for further assessment or intervention by other			
Behavior Management	behavio	hes and implemental and procedure ions, rules, and rences.		¡ Demonstrates an awareness of			Reinforces positive behavior.		
Records Management	Maintain's organized and up-to-gate records.					Maintains a system for recording individual participant's knowledge and progress.			
Professional Knowledge Presents accurate information. Recognizes and promotes the relationship of the professional areapresents content for the specific to the total program. Appropriately organizes and promotes the relationship of the professional area.						¢.			
Other Complies with Florida Statutes, State Board of Education Rules, School Board of Broward County Policies Professional other applicable regulations.							icies, and		
Ove rall Performance Rating S - Satisfactory N - Needs Improvement (Annual contract teachers only) U - Unsatisfactory									
Comments by the assessor:									
				Assessor				Date	_
Commante hir tha am	nlower								

Supersedes:	Issued By:
N/A New Business Practice Bulletin	Evaluation Coordinators

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

BULLETIN NO.: H-110

PAGE: 9 OF 9

DATE: JULY 1, 2008

SUBJECT: PROCEDURES FOR EVALUATING INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL

Index

Categories of IPAS Instrument	3
Distribution	5
Division of Human Resources, Role of	4
Exhibits	5
Feedback Conferences	4
Form Completion	4
Human Resource Development Department, Role of	4
Instructional, Instrument	6
Introduction	2
Media, Instrument	7
Observation/Data Collection	2
Office of Professional Standards, Role of	4
Orientation	2
Performance Development Plan	3
Procedures	2
Ratings of IPAS Instrument	3
Reporting Requirements	4
Required Training	2
Responsibilities of All Applicable Departments	4
School Principal, Role of	4
Staff Development	2
Student Services, Instrument	8
Table of Contents	1
Timeline	2

Supersedes:	Issued By:
N/A New Business Practice Bulletin	Evaluation Coordinators